
 

 
 

January 6, 2020 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in Regular Meeting on Monday, 
January 6, 2020 at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  
Commissioners Johnson, Phelps, Riddick, Sexton and Walker were present.  Also present were 
County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance 
Officer Missy Dixon.   
 

 Chair Phelps called the meeting to order. Chair Phelps asked everyone to please turn their 
cell phones off and if they need to talk to their neighbor to please step outside so as not to disrupt 
the meeting.  Commissioner Sexton introduced Pastor Paul Harrington, the new pastor of the First 
Baptist Church in Plymouth.  Pastor Harrington then gave the invocation; Commissioner Riddick 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None. 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Riddick made a motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 

 
Commissioner Sexton seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM:  Chair Phelps read the public forum rules.  
 

Public Comment Statements 
In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public 
comment period.  
 
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of 
each regular monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at 
which they wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  
Each speaker shall clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak 
on the signup sheet.   
 
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I 
wish to remind the public is: 
 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their 

remarks by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any 

impromptu questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the 



 

Board as a body, and not to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between 
speakers and members of the audience shall not be allowed. 
 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use 
profanity, racial slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks 
of commissioners. 

  
5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks 

depending on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number 
of speakers allowed to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same 
topic.   

 
6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to 

leave a copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 
 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public 
hearings set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including 
without limitation matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending 
litigation, personnel, property acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by 
law. 

 
Ms. Jeanette Price, 15 Price Avenue, said her road needs to be maintained and asked for 

the County to take over the road.  Ms. Price then thanked Commissioner Riddick for helping her. 
 
Ms. Doris Dixon, Dixon Avenue, wants her road maintained.  Ms. Dixon said she took 

Commissioner Riddick to her road to show her how bad it was.  Ms. Dixon wants the state to 
take it over. 

 
Ms. Pam Pittman, 22 Moore Avenue, wants her road maintained and wants the County to 

help them out. 
 
Mr. James Chesson, 187 Biggs Road, wants his road maintained and wants the County to 

help them. Mr. Chesson thanked Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Riddick for trying to 
help. 

 
Commissioner Sexton asked are these roads all in the same area.  Commissioner Riddick 

said yes, they are all off of Reno Road.   
 
Chair Phelps asked Ms. Keyes to respond.  Ms. Keyes said that road was under the 

subdivision ordinance at one time, then the ordinance was repealed.  
 
Chair Phelps asked Mr. Potter what direction he can give them.  Mr. Potter asked for each 

one to give Ms. Adams, County Manager’s Office Administrative Assistant, their contact 
information and Mr. Potter will look over the plat for this area.  The State of NC prohibits 
counties to take over roads.  However, Mr. Potter said the County staff can help facilitate with 
the State on their behalf.  



 

 
Commissioner Riddick asked if these residents give their info to Ms. Adams, do they still 

need to fill out the SR1 form.  Mr. Potter said yes they do still need to fill out the form.  
  
Chair Phelps asked Mr. Potter if these residents will hear from the County within 30 

days. Mr. Potter said yes. 
 
Ms. Zina Rhodes, 410 3 ½ Street, DSS Transportation Supervisor, spoke about Riverlight 

Transit and said it is time to apply for the 2020 grant. She went over the following information. 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 

COLLETON SOFTWARE:  Mr. Bruce Gurkin, President of Colleton Software, our EMS 
billing company, spoke to the Board and went over the following reports. 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 
 
Commissioner Johnson asked was the “prison” actually “detention”.  Mr. Gurkin said no 

because then the County would be paying themselves.  Commissioner Johnson asked how 
Washington County could get flagged as super rural.  Mr. Gurkin said this is set by the state and 
Colleton has not gone to them to get this changed. 

 
Mr. Gurkin stated that 78% is what is collected from Medicaid. Chair Phelps asked if 

Colleton could do better.  Mr. Gurkin said 80% is about the best Colleton can do.  They aren’t 
allowed to go after the 22% for Medicaid. 

  
Ms. O’Neal, EMS Director, said that some residents did pay after receiving the debt 

setoff letter. 
 
Mr. Gurkin noted that they send out 30, 60,  and 90 day letters and if there is no activity 

on the account, then the account goes on debt setoff.  Mr. Gurkin said that debt setoff letters are 
sent out in December. 

  
Mr. Potter said the County has begun to receive settlement offers and we could recoup 

maybe 60% or 70%.  Mr. Potter said staff doesn’t want to do this unless we have a policy on 
guidance for accepting these settlements. 

 
 
 



 

GRANICUS BOARDS & COMMITTEES SOFTWARE PRESENTATION:  Ms. Julie J. 
Bennett, Clerk to the Board gave a brief presentation to the Board on the new software.  She 
showed them a website from another County that uses the same software so the Board could see 
what it would look like and the options available. Ms. Bennett said there are several bugs to be 
worked out and a lot of work still left to do, but she and Ms. Adams are working on it. 

 
Chair Phelps asked the Clerk to put this item back on the March 2, 2020 agenda and plan 

to go live on that date. 
 

WHAT SURROUNDING COUNTIES ARE DOING TO GET THE ¼ SALES TAX 
REFERENDUM PASSED:  Ms. Allysa Rouse, Management Fellow, gave the following 
presentation.   

 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 

 Commissioner Johnson liked the visual of the ¼ of a penny and thinks that is the key to 
helping it pass this year.  Commissioner Johnson said we are already paying this so it’s a no-
brainer!! 

 
PLANNING/SAFETY/INSPECTIONS POSITION UPDATE:  Mr. Potter gave an update 

on the Planning/Safety/Inspections Positions.  Please see his information below. 
 



 

 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
Mr. Potter said he was delayed a couple of weeks in getting this information out due to 

working on hospital issues.  Advertisements have been widely publicized and he has already had 
some folks apply. 
 
 ECONOMIC IMPROVEMENT COUNCIL, INC:  Ms. Bennett explained to the Board that each 
year EIC is required to submit a copy of their Grant Application to the Board of Commissioners.  Ms. 
Bennett noted that a copy of the EIC’s 2020 grant application was in the Commissioners’ Agenda 



 

Package. This document is for information only – no action is needed.  (A copy of this application is on 
file in the Clerk’s office.)   
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY WATERWORKS RULES & REGULATIONS 
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT:  Mr. Potter addressed the Board and discussed his memo below 
on this amendment. 
 

 



 

  
 
 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 
 

Chair Phelps asked how the County is going to educate citizens to these changes, 
especially the water cut-ons and cut-offs. Mr. Potter said we will have information on the 
website.  It was decided not to send out any special notices.  Commissioner Riddick asked if the 



 

information could go on the water bill.  Ms. Dixon said there would have to be an insert.  It can’t 
go directly on the water bill. 
 

Commissioner Johnson asked if the County has an “emergency” clause in it.  Mr. Potter 
and Ms. Dixon both replied yes, because mistakes do get made. 
 

Commissioner Johnson asked if there is supposed to be a public hearing for this.  Mr. 
Potter said no; however; we could table this and have a public hearing at the next meeting.   
Commissioner Riddick said she thinks we need a public hearing because everyone does not have 
a computer or read the paper or listen to the radio.  Commissioner Johnson said she would like 
more information. 
 

Commissioner Riddick made a motion to table the Waterworks Rules & 
Regulations Ordinance Amendment to have a public hearing on February 3, 2020.  
Commissioner Johnson seconded.  Discussion ensued. Commissioner Riddick said she would 
like more information on the payment schedule and fee schedule and maybe even simplify it.  
She would like to wait 30 more days. Commissioner Sexton said he didn’t think the Board needs 
a public hearing.  The fees are tied into the budget. He feels that something needs to go in with 
the water bill to educate citizens.  Commissioner Riddick said we have elderly residents who 
won’t come to the public hearing and their children are probably the ones who pay the bills.  
Everyone won’t read it even if there was something on the water bill.  Commissioner Walker 
asked when will we have the public hearing. Mr. Potter said the Board could have it at the 
February 3rd Commissioners’ meeting.  Mr. Potter said the notice of the public hearing can be put 
on the website and he will talk about it on the radio. Mr. Potter said he will check into mailing 
something out with additional information for residents.  Commissioner Sexton said the Board 
can’t put the fees in the Ordinance because every time the fees change in the budget, then the 
Ordinance will have to be changed.  Mr. Potter said the fee schedule is referenced in the 
Ordinance.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY:  Mr. Potter addressed the Board and discussed his memo 
below.   

 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 
 
Commissioner Riddick made a motion to approve the Social Media Policy as an 

administrative policy.  Commissioner Walker seconded.    Commissioner Johnson said it 
seems that the policy basically says the County and staff are open to full disclosure. Chair Phelps 



 

stated that if staff violate this policy, then they have to deal with the County Manager. Motion 
passed unanimously. 

 

BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Chair Phelps noted that the Clerk put the list of Boards & 
Committees that each Commissioner serves on in their Agenda Package.  He asked if anyone 
wanted to make a change.  The consensus of the Board was to leave them as is. No action needs 
to be taken. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT, BUDGET AMENDMENTS/TRANSFERS:   Ms. 
Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget amendments and her report that was in the 
Commissioners’ package.  

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 
Chair Phelps asked at what percentage the Department Heads should be at.  Ms. Dixon 

said 50%,  since we are halfway through our fiscal year.  Commissioner Sexton asked why 
money was moved to the Landfill.  Ms. Dixon said the County needed to have some white goods 
removed from the Landfill. The State Inspector made a visit and this was noted.  Mr. Potter said 
there will probably be another Budget Amendment coming to the Board for grinding up concrete 



 

and additional yard debris.  Commissioner Sexton asked if the County has talked to Shavender. 
Mr. Potter said he doesn’t know if the County has enough for such a big contractor.  
 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the abovementioned Budget 
Amendments and Transfers as presented.  Commissioner Riddick seconded, motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIRMAN, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ATTORNEY, 
CLERK OR FINANCE OFFICER: 

 
Chair Phelps said the Board will be recessing to next Monday night (January 13 th) at 5:00 PM in 

the Commissioners’ Room to discuss the upcoming budget.  He also reminded everyone of the MLK 
celebration on Rankin Lane on Monday, January 20th. 

 
Chair Phelps asked for an update on the hospital from Mr. Potter.  Mr. Potter said a second 

hearing was held on December 30.  First Capital did make the loan to the hospital for paying the 
employees with a short term loan of $500,000.  The next hearing is set for January 16th in Raleigh.  Mr. 
Potter said he hopes to hear that Affinity has obtained funds for buying the hospital.  He did get word 
that the hospital employees were paid.  Their next payroll will be on January 10th and should be made 
according to Affinity. 

 
Chair Phelps recognized Debra Spencer Brooks from Plymouth Town Council for being at the 

meeting tonight. 
 
Commissioner Walker commented on how Mr. Potter has handled the hospital situation.  He has 

been very professional. 
 
Commissioner Riddick said she will be attending a “How to Lead Your County” workshop on 

January 10th in Raleigh.  
 
Mr. Potter noted the following upcoming meetings: 
 AQUA will be making a site visit this Thursday, January 9th 
 Department Head meeting on Wednesday, January 8th  
 Commissioners’ Budget Workshop January 13th  
 Washington County Drainage Meeting January 21st   

 
Commissioner Riddick made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 

§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and § 143.318.11(a)(6) personnel.  
Commissioner Johnson seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 
At 8:50 PM, back in Open Session with no further business to discuss, Commissioner 

Riddick made a motion to recess to January 13 at 5:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room 
for the Commissioners’ Budget Workshop.  Commissioner Johnson seconded, motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 

          D. Cole Phelps Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
           Chair                  Clerk to the Board 


